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INTRODUCTORY SECTION



December 22, 2005

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Albuquerque, New Mexico

We are pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Albuquerque,
New Mexico, (City), for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. The report was prepared by the Department of
Finance and Administrative Services. The responsibility for the accuracy of the data presented and the
completeness and fairness of presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. As indicated by the
opinion of our independent auditors, the report fairly presents the financial position and results of
operations of the City as measured by the financial activity of its various funds. The report has been set
forth in a manner that will give the reader a broad understanding of the City's financial affairs. It includes
disclosures necessary for the reader to gain an understanding of the City's financial activities.

This is the fourth year the City has prepared the CAFR using the new financial reporting requirements as
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements
- and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments (GASB 34). This GASB
Statement requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany
the basic financial statements in the form of a Management's Discussion & Analysis (MD&A). This letter of
transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it, The MD&A
can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

The City's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report consists of five major sections:

(1) The Introductory Section includes this letter of transmittal that provides information about the
organizational structure of the City, the City's economy, internal control structure, budgetary
controls, cash management, and risk management.

(2) The Financial Section is prepared in accordance with the GASB 34 requirements by including the
MD& A and the Basic Financial Statements including notes. The Basic Financial Statements include
government-wide financial statements that present an overview of the City's entire financial
operations and the fund financial statements that present the financial information of each of the
City's major funds, as well as non-major governmental, proprietary, fiduciary, and other funds.
Also included in this section is the Independent Auditors' Report on the financial statements and
schedules.

(3) The Statistical Information Section contains tables with general information about the City and
comparative data for prior fiscal years.




(4) Single Audit Information includes the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards as required by
the Single Audit Act, and the related findings and recommendations by the City's independent
auditors.

(5) State Compliance and Operational Findings include certain schedules required by the State

Auditor's Office.

The CAFR of the City includes all government activities, organizations and functions for which the City is
financially accountable. The criteria used to determine financial accountability are based on, and consistent
with, the pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, which sets criteria for defining
the financial reporting entity. The City of Albuquerque is 2 major municipal government providing a full
range of services to approximately 484,000 citizens.
Included in these services are traditional city functions
such as police and fire protection, cultural and
recreational activities and venues, storm drainage, road

and traffic signal maintenance, and refuse collection. 3 _ ——3!\L __J——1 :_,,\;3; “\
Effective July 1, 2003 water and sewer services that A B _ﬁ{_ﬁ_’ ! ~ TL’:/
used to be provided by the City are now provided by the . —_ r——‘~—\ f’T“ Y
Albuquerque- Bernalillo County Water Utility N N T
Authority, which is operated by the City under the \.} R 'h\ R o

terms of a Memorandum of Understanding with the — — ) Ly

Authority. In addition, the City operates parking 7 . T \

facilities, a transit system, an international airport, - ¥ = NewMaxico

corrections and detention facilities, and a housing

authority. The City does not have relationships with any other organizations not included in this CAFR of
such nature and significance that exclusion would render the City's financial statements incomplete or
misleading.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

Summary of Local Economy

Albuquerque is the largest city in New Mexico, accounting for roughly one-quarter of the state's population.
Albuquerque is the major commercial, trade, service and financial center of the state. It is located in the
central part of the state, at the intersection of two major interstate highways, and served by both rail and air.
The Albuquerque Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) includes Bernalillo, Sandoval, Valencia and
Torrance Counties. The largest employers in the Albuquerque area are the University of New Mexico,
Albuquerque Public Schools, Sandia National Labs (SNL), and Kirtland Air Force Base.

The Albuquerque economy has an industry composition not unlike that of the U.S. as a whole, except that
manufacturing is a smaller portion of employment. In the 1960s manufacturing made up over 30% of the
U.S. economy, but by 2003 the manufacturing share of employment had declined to 11%.

Major Industries

Services: The service sector is the largest source of employment in the MSA, accounting for 41% of the non-
agricultural civilian employment in FY/05. This sector continues to grow in importance in both
Albuquerque and the U.S. It is a diverse sector including jobs in medical services, hotels, amusement,
movies, legal work, commercial research, business services, food services, engineering, and architectural
services. It includes temporary employment agencies, call centers, back office operations, and employment
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at SNL, which is expanding in response to national homeland security issues. The Sandia Research Park has
several high-tech occupants taking advantage of the location and ability to access SNL facilities and staff.
Also located on the Park is the SNL International Programs Building. This houses the Cooperative
Monitoring Center and International Security Center. The function of these programs is to strengthen
national and international security and reduce the threat of weapons of mass destruction.

As a major regional medical center, the medical services industry has several of the largest employers in the
area. The health services industry had been one of the fastest growing sectors in the Albuquerque area.
Even with recent uncertainties regarding heath care financing particularly Medicare, and some local
consolidations and/or acquisitions, growth has continued at a rapid pace.

Trade (retail and wholesale): The trade sector is a strong catalyst for growth in the area. Many major
national chains have expanded into the area and general growth and low interest rates have helped maintain
relatively stable levels of consumer spending.

Albuguerque

Employment  Share of FY/05 Growth FY/04 Compound Annual
FY2005 Employment to FY/05 Average FY/00 to FY/05

NAICS CATEGORY
Total Nonfarm Employment (does not indude military) 37428 22%
Natural Resources and Mining and Construction 2673 7% 7.9%
Manufacturing 262 6% 0.7%
Trade, Transportation, and Utilities 66.38 18% 0.7%
Information 8.89 3% -10.2% .
Finandial Activities 19.33 5% 1.9% 0.
of Services 154,50 41% 3.1%
Professional and Business Services 5985 16% 3.0%
Educational and Health Services 46.38 12% 5.9%
Leisure and Hospitality 3626 10% 0.0%
Other Services , 12.01 3% 22% .
Govemment 75.83 20% 2.4% 2.1%
MILITARY 676 NA 1.0% 0.6%

Manufacturing: Albuquerque’s small manufacturing sector accounts for about 6% of total non-agricultural
employment. Investments by Intel and other high tech firms are helping to create a critical mass of activity
in Albuquerque that is expected to attract the interest of other firms including competitors, suppliers, and
customers. Forbes Magazine and others now rate Albuquerque as one of the top high tech centers in the U.S,
Unfortunately, some firms in the semiconductor and high-tech areas have not fared well, with Philips
Semiconductors closing their Albuquerque operation in October 2003 and Lightpath Technology
consolidating its operations in Florida. The over-expansion and collapse of the telecommunications industry
has been a major contributing factor. The manufacturing sector lost about 5,000 jobs from FY/01 to FY/04.
The losses are slowing with a modest recovery in the semi-conductor industry. Tempur-Pedic a high tech
mattress firm is constructing a facility that will employ about 300 workers when it opens in December 2005.
Eclipse Aviation is expanding its operations at the Albuquerque Sunport and has plans to move to expanded
facilities at the industrial park near the Double Eagle airport in 2007 after it has delivered its first jets.

Construction: The construction sector is a source of both growth and volatility in the Albuquerque
economy. Growth in employment and in gross receipts in construction tends to be quite cyclical as shown in
the following chart for the residential building market. Booms in 1972, 1978, and 1984 were very large,
accentuated by the multi-family housing market and certain tax rules that encouraged large developments.
Through the 1990s, there has been a more or less sustained growth in single-family home construction. Low
interest rates and stable or reduced prices for much of the period helped fuel the growth. The lower priced
homes also allowed many potential apartment dwellers to purchase houses. This is part of the reason the
number of multi-family units permitted has been limited. Even with the large number of single-family units,
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the total number of units is far short of the peaks experienced in the 1970s and 1980s. The value of
construction permits per home increased by 27% for FY/05 following an increase of 7% in FY/04. This
means that even though the number of residential permits slightly declined in FY/05, the total value of
permits increased.

The following chart illustrates residential construction permits issued:

Permits issued for Residential Units in Albuquerque
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New commercial construction slowed substantially in 2003, from a peak in 1995, but much of this is offset by
construction classified as additions and alterations. The expansion of the Indian casinos at Isleta, Sandia,
Santa Ana, and Acoma Pueblos has helped increase construction employment in the area in the past few
years. Sandia National Labs has two construction projects that ultimately will spend close to half a billion
dollars. One, the Center for Integrated Nanotechnology (CINT), a $75 million project, now complete in the
Sandia Research Park. The other is the Microsystems and Engineering Sciences Applications (MESA). This
is inside the labs and will ultimately cost around $450 million. A major mixed use development, infill project
is underway, with a mix of retail and residential, and a creation of an open air mall. In FY/05, construction
started on the rebuilding of the interstate exchange at Coors and I-40, as well as substantial reconstruction
on major portions of I-40 within the City.

Government: The total number of government employees in the Albuquerque MSA increased by 7,800
between 1995 and 2001, with the majority of the increase attributable to the classification of Indian casino
workers as local government employees. Military employment has declined in every year since 1989, and
there have been reductions in federal government employment in each year since 1993. Reductions in
federal military spending have been responsible for losses in employment at General Electric, Honeywell
Defense, Avionics, and BDM. In contrast, the new Sandia Research Park and the push for technology
transfer from the labs, is reflected in the growth of high tech industries in central New Mexico. Funding
from the federal government for the nuclear weapons program and homeland security now seem relatively
secure as SNL assumes new roles in a post-9/11 environment. Kirtland AF B, with its diverse operations, has
done relatively well in the waves of base consolidations and closures, even gaining in the most recent Base
Realignment and Closure (BRAC). Military employment in FY/03 to FY/0S increased by 271 jobs. Even so,
military employment is down by about 1,000 from FY/95.



Future Economic Outlook

In the near term, Albuquerque will continue to face many of the same challenges as the nation while the
economy stabilizes after the terrorist attacks of September 11, and while facing the uncertainty related to
federal spending due to the demands of rebuilding after the hurricanes in the Guif states. How we deal with
the threat of terrorism at home will have long term impacts on the economy and how Albuquerque and the
U.S. will grow. Employment growth remains moderate with the second quarter of 2005 showing growth of
1.8%. However, manufacturing is not expected to rebound significantly until the semiconductor and
telecommunications industries nationwide more fully recover. On the plus side, New Mexico has generally
weathered this recession better than its neighbors. Only recently have Colorado and Texas added jobs to
their economies. Arizona had growth of 2.4%, but had suffered much more severe declines. Lodger’s tax,
after remaining flat for several years, grew nearly 5% in FY/04 and posted solid growth of 3.2% in FY/05;
hopefully this will hold, but high gasoline prices tend to discourage tourism in New Mexico. High tech
industry is growing and many of the small manufacturing firms have experienced substantial growth. The
broadening of the industrial base to include aviation and mattress production will help Albuquerque
continue to grow and prosper. The City believes it is well positioned to attract new investment by suppliers,
customers, and other producers. As discussed above SNL is a source of strength for the local economy. SNL
has devoted a great deal of research to terrorism and homeland security. The mission to protect the nuclear
weapons arsenal has become even more critical. The micro-systems technology, or nano-technology, for
which SNL is well known, may provide many novel and inexpensive answers to medical and materials
sciences. A large facility will be built at the labs as a joint project between Sandia and Los Alamos National
Iabs to expand abilities in this area.

Additional historic economic information is presented in the statistical section of this report.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Internal control structure: The Department of Finance and Administrative Services is responsible for
providing financial services for the City including financial accounting and reporting, payroll and accounts
payable disbursement functions, cash and investment management, debt management, purchasing, computer
information systems, and risk management.

City management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to
ensure the assets of the government are protected from loss, theft or misuse. It also ensures adequate
accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles. Accounting principles for municipalities are embodied in pronouncements
of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The Financial Accounting Standards Board, the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Government Finance Officers Association also
impact and influence current governmental accounting standards. The internal control structure is designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that control objectives are met. The concept of reasonable
assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived while the
establishment of an appropriate internal control structure requires estimates and judgments from
management. All internal control evaluations occur within the above framework. We believe that the City's
current internal control structure adequately safeguards assets and provides reasonable assurance of proper
recording of financial transactions.

Budgetary controls: The development and approval of the annual budget is the beginning of the financial
transaction process. After approval of the budget by the City Council, budgetary control is maintained by a
formal appropriation and encumbrance system. The appropriated amounts reflected in the accompanying
financial statements represent departmental budgets by program; it is at this level at which expenditures
may not exceed appropriations. Encumbrances, which represent commitments for the purchase of goods or
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services, are shown as a reservation of fund balance in the governmental funds in limited circumstances for
property purchases. Those encumbrances have been reappropriated in fiscal year 2006 for programs that
had adequate reversions for the year ended June 30, 2005.

Taxes: Taxable property valuations were $8.3 billion in fiscal year 2005, a $401.7 million (5.09%) increase
from the previous year. Current property tax collections for fiscal year 2005 were 96.31% of the levy,
compared to 95.7% in the prior year. Except for fiscal year 2000, current tax collections for the past decade
have consistently exceeded 90% of the levy. The ratio of total collections (current and delinquent) to the
current tax levy in 2005 was 99.8% compared to 99.9% in 2004. Cumulative total collections for the last ten
years are 99.3% of the cumulative billings.

Allocation of the property tax for fiscal year 2005 and the preceding two fiscal years is based on the
following mill levy:

Purpose 2005 2004 2003
Operational mill levy:
Residential 3.019 2.014 2.019
Non-residential 3.544 2544 2.544
Debt service levy 7.976 7976 8976

The gross receipts tax rate on receipts within the City was 6.75% at June 30, 2005. Increases during the year
occurred with an increase of 0.5% effective January 1, 2005, an increase which offset the deduction of food
and some medical services. At the same time, Bernalillo County increased their tax by 0.1875%. The
breakdown and sources of the gross receipts tax rate at June 30, 2005 are as follows:

Percent of

Tax Rate  Total Rate

State General Fund 3.7750% 55.9%
Bernalillo County distribution 4375 6.5
Municipal distribution - State shared 1.0000 14.8

Municipal distribution - in lieu of previous

.25% municipal tax - State shared .2250 3.3
City of Albuquerque general purpose .5000 7.4
City of Albuquerque public safety 2500 3.7
City of Albuquerque basic services .2500 3.7
City of Albuquerque transportation infrastructure .2500 3.7
Municipal infrastructure gross receipts tax .0625 1.0

6.7500% 100.0%

Additional information about revenues, tax rates, and levies is presented in the statistical section of this
report.

Cash management: Pursuant to the Fiscal Agent Ordinance of the City, a pooled cash investment program
is in place, and cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in those investments and deposits
authorized by the City's Investment Policy. It is the City's policy to minimize investment and market risk
while seeking to obtain a competitive yield on its total portfolio. Investments and deposits in the City's
common investment pool totaled $639.2 million at June 30, 2005. Of this amount, $240.0 million was
invested in repurchase agreements and $399.2 million in securities of the Federal government and its related
agencies and certificates of deposit.



The City's portfolio average life at June 30, 2005 was 230 days. The average yield on the investment
portfolio was 2.8% at the end of June 2005 and 2.0% at the end of June 2004. Net earnings totaled $15.0
million during the fiscal year. Pooled cash, investments, and accrued interest balances (in millions) at the
end of the year for the last five years are as follows:

2005 $639.2
2004 595.9
2003 491.4
2002 323.2
2001 451.1

Risk management: The City operates its Risk Management program as an Internal Service Fund;
accountability and managerial control over workers compensation, tort liability, and other risks are
maintained through this fund. The program is intended as a self-insurance program with added risk control
and prevention techniques. "Insurance premiums" are received from the operating departments in the form
of transfers. The added risk control and prevention techniques include an executive safety committee to
oversee employee accident prevention training and a wellness program.

The transfers to the Risk Management fund from the operating (insured) departments were $32.5 million
compared to transfers in the prior year of $28.7 million. Claim reserves (current and long-term) as of June
30, 200S were $50.3 million, an increase from $47.6 million in the previous year. The Fund experienced a
change in net assets of $3.9 in 2005, an increase from the net loss of $1.1 million in 2002.

The deficit fund equity decreased to $8.7 million at June 30, 2005 from the $12.6 million at June 30, 2004.
The City has implemented a five-year recovery plan and anticipates eliminating the deficit by June 30, 2007
by increasing the annual assessment to all operating funds, as well as improving the City’s loss experience
through aggressive management.

OTHER INFORMATION

Independent audit: New Mexico state law requires that independent public accountants perform an annual
audit of a governmental unit’s accounting records and Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. The firm
of Neff & Ricci LLP has performed the audit for the year ending June 30, 2005. Federal law also requires
that a single audit be performed for federal grant funds as required by the Single Audit Act and OMB
Circular A-133. The independent auditors' report on the financial statements and schedules is included in
the financial section of this report. The independent auditors’ reports related specifically to the single audit
are included in the Single Audit Section.

Awards: The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) of the United States and Canada awarded
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Albuquerque for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004. The City has received this
prestigious award every year since 1980. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a
governmental unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report, the contents of which conform to program standards. This report must satisfy both
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year. We believe that our current Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we
are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

In addition, the City also received the GFOA's Award for Distinguished Budget Presentation for its annual
appropriated budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2004. In order to receive this award, a
governmental unit must publish a budget document that meets program criteria as a policy document, as an
operations guide, as a financial plan, and as a communications medium.
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Acknowledgments: The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the dedicated
services of the staff of the Department of Finance and Administrative Services. We wish to express our
sincere appreciation to all members of the Department who contributed to its preparation and recognize the
major effort of the Accounting Division and its Financial Reporting Section in administering the City's
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support in planning and conducting the financial operations of the City in a responsible and progressive
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Respectfully submitted,

Gail D. Reese, CPA
Chief Financial Officer
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The following persons contributed to the preparation of the Comprehensive Annuai Financial Report:

Accounting personnel

Cameron Hull
Accounting Officer

Angela Ekofo
Accounting Manager

Barbara Burns
Principal Accountant

Debbie Dombroski
Principal Accountant

Ruth Lott
Principal Accountant

Elaine Padilla
Principal Accountant

Virginia Pelzl
Principal Accountant

Michael Shynkar
Principal Accountant

Nela Wilkinson
Principal Accountant

Beatriz Hulverson
Finance Technician

Sherri Bowers
Administrative Assistant
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
6100 UPTOWN BLVD. NE SUITE 400
ALBUQUERQUE, NM 87110

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Honorable Martin Chavez, Mayor and
Members of City Council and
Mr. Domingo Martinez, CGFM
New Mexico State Auditor
Santa Fe, New Mexico

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Albuquerque, New Mexico
(City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2005, which collectively comprise the City’s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. We have also audited the
budgetary comparisons, and financial statements of each of the City’s nonmajor
governmental, nonmajor enterprise, and internal service funds presented in the
accompanying combining financial statements and information in the other
supplementary schedules, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2005, as listed in the table
of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management.
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2005, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof, and
the budgetary comparison for each fund’s activities, for the year ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In
addition, in our opinion, the financial statements referred to
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The Honorable Martin Chavez, Mayor and
Members of City Council and
Mr. Domingo Martinez, CGFM
New Mexico State Auditor
Santa Fe, New Mexico

above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of each
nonmajor governmental, nonmajor enterprise, and internal service fund of the City, as of
June 30, 2005, and the respective changes in the financial position and cash flows, where
applicable, and respective budgetary comparisons thereof for the year ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 16, 2005, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of out testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of the testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Audit Standards and should be read in
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis is not a required part of the basic financial
statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
accompanying Financial Data Schedule, as required by the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development, Guidelines for Public Housing Authorities and Independent
Auditors under Uniform Financial Reporting Standards for Public Housing Authorities,
the other supplementary schedules, and the schedules of deposits and investments, and
pledged collateral by financial institutions are not required parts of the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The accompanying introductory and statistical sections, as listed in the Table of Contents,
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. This information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on them.

/7% + Kecei LLP
Albuquerque, New Mexico
December 16, 2005
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CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2005

This section of the City of Albuquerque's (City) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) presents a
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005.
We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information
that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

o The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $1.3 billion
(net assets). Of this amount, $138.3 million (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the
government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors in subsequent accounting periods.

* The government's total net assets increased by $136.1 million during the year, principally as a result of
the completion of several major capital improvement program projects.

® As of June 30, 2005, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $372.3
million. Approximately 73.9% of this amount, $275.0 million, is unreserved fund balance available for
spending at the government's discretion. Included in this amount is approximately $156.2 million in
the Capital Acquisition Fund.

e At the close of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $42.7 million
or 12.6% of the total general fund expenditures of $337.8 million.

¢ The City's total long-term debt increased by $64.7 million during the current year. The key factors in
this change were: 1) the issuance of bonds and notes payable accompanied by additions to accrued
vacation and sick leave pay and claims totaling $251.5 million, and 2) debt reduction payments and
liquidations of accrued liabilities totaling $186.8 million.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements.
The City's basic financial statements contain three components: 1) Government-wide financial statements, 2)
Fund financial statements, and 3) Notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the differences
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether or not the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating, absent
extraordinary events.
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CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2005

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows, Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods, such as revenues pertaining
to uncollected taxes and expenses pertaining to earned but unused vacation and sick leave.

The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to
recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The
governmental activities of the City include public safety and protection, culture and recreation, public works,
public health, human services, housing, highways and streets, and special assessments. The business-type
activities of the City include an airport, apartments, a baseball stadium, refuse disposal services, golf courses,
parking facilities, and a transit system,

The City does not have a relationship with any other government that would cause that government to be
considered a component unit of the City. The City does, however, operate the water and waste water utility
serving the City and it’s citizens that is owned by the Albuquerque Bernalillo Water Utility Authority under
the terms of a Memorandum of Understanding that will expire on June 30, 2006.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements are designed to report information about groupings of related accounts that are
used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The
City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into the following three
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements — i.e. most of the City’s basic services
are reported in governmental funds. These statements, however, focus on (1) how cash and other financial
assets can readily be converted to available resources and (2) the balances left at year-end that are
available for spending. Such information may be useful in determining what financial resources are
available in the near future to finance the City’s programs.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statements of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains several individual governmental funds organized according to their type (special
revenue, debt service, capital projects and permanent funds). Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances for the General, General Obligations Debt Service, and the Capital Acquisition
funds, all of which are considered major funds. Data from the remaining governmental funds are
combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of the nonmajor
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.
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CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2005

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for the General Fund. A budgetary comparison statement
for the General Fund is presented in the Basic Financial Statements section of this report. A budgetary
comparison statement for the General Obligation Debt Service Fund, a major fund, is presented in the
Supplementary Information section. In addition, the City adopts an annual appropriated budget for other
nonmajor governmental funds. Budgetary comparison statements for those funds are also presented in the
Supplementary Information section.

Proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are generally used to account for services for which the City charges
customers — either outside customers, or internal units or departments of the City. Proprietary funds
provide the same type of information as shown in the government-wide financial statements, only in more
detail. The City maintains the following two types of proprietary funds:

* Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for the operations of
the Albuquerque International Airport, Refuse Disposal, and Transit, which are considered major
funds of the City. In addition the following nonmajor funds are reported: Apartments, Golf Course,
Parking, Stadium, and Housing Authority.

* Internal Service funds are used to report activities that provide supplies and services for certain City
programs and activities. These funds account for inventory warehousing and stock issues; workers’
compensation, tort and other claims insurance coverage; vehicle maintenance and motor pool services;
and communication services to City departments. In addition, these funds provide health insurance
coverage to City employees. Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than
business-type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements. The internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service
funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the City. The City's Trust and Agency Fund is reported under the fiduciary funds. Since the resources of
this fund are not available to support the City’s own programs, it is not reflected in the government-wide
financial statements. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of
the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Required Supplementary Information (RSI)

The required budgetary comparison statement for the General Fund is presented separately and in the basic
financial statements. The City is not required to provide other information in the RSI and, therefore, no
information is presented there.

Combining Statements

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds, nonmajor
proprietary funds, internal service funds, and fiduciary funds are presented immediately following the Notes to
the Financial Statements.



CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2005

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

This is the fourth year that the City has presented its financial statements under the new reporting model
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 (GASB 34), Basic Financial
Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) - for State and Local Governments. Below
is a comparative analysis of government-wide data for the most recently completed fiscal year and the prior
fiscal year.

NET ASSETS
(in millions)
Total
Governmental Business-type Percent
Activities Activities Total Change
2005 2004 2005 2004* 2005 2004* 2004 - 2005
Assets:
Current and other assets $ 6028 $ 571.1 S 1824 § 1690 § 7852 $§ 7401 6.1%
Capital Assets 953.7 843.0 486.0 466.1 1,439.7 1,309.1 10.0%
Total assets 1,556.5 1414.1 668.4 635.1 2,224.9  2,049.2 8.6%
Liabilities:
Long-term liabilities outstanding 439.7 368.0 276.5 2834 716.2 651.4 9.9%
Other liabilities 178.6 200.4 36.7 30.7 2153 231.1 -6.8%
Total liabilities 618.3 568.4 313.2 314.1 931.5 882.5 5.6%
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 654.1 557.9 2371 206.9 891.2 764.8 16.5%
Restricted 181.0 2115 83.0 7158 264.0 289.0 -8.7%
Unrestricted 103.1 76.3 35.1 36.6 138.2 112.9 22.4%
Total net assets $ 9382 § 8457 § 3552 § 3210 $1,2934 $1,166.7 10.9%

* Restated see note 22

Analysis of Net Assets

As noted earlier, net assets may serve as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. For the City,
assets exceeded liabilities by $1.3 billion at the close of the year. The largest portion of the City's net assets
(68.9%) reflects its investment of $891.2 million in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, and equipment less any
related outstanding debt used to acquire these assets). The City uses these capital assets to provide services to
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's investment in its
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that resources needed to pay this debt must
come from other sources, since the capital assets cannot be liquidated for these liabilities.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City has positive balances in all three categories of net assets for the
government as a whole, as well as for both the government and business-type activities.
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CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2005

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, continued

Analysis of Changes in Net Assets

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
(in millions of dollars)
Total
Governmental Business-type Percentage
Activities Activities Total Change
2005 2004 2005 2004* 2005 2004* 2004 - 2005
REVENUES
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 871 S 89 $ 1291 S 125.0 $ 2162 $ 2089 3.5%
Operating grants and contributions 29.9 329 248 25.2 54.7 58.1 -5.9%
Capital grants and contributions 1.0 24 29.9 12.8 30.9 15.2 103.3%
General revenues:
Grass receipts taxes 163.3 132.2 - - 163.3 132.2 23.5%
Property taxes 92.6 88.2 - - 92.6 88.2 5.0%
Other taxes 33.9 323 - - 33.9 323 5.0%
State shared taxes and fees 167.9 161.8 - - 167.9 161.8 3.8%
Grants, investment income, and other 57.5 33.4 1.7 0.1 59.2 33.5 76.7%
Total revenues 633.2 567.1 185.5 163.1 818.7 730.2 12.1%
EXPENSES
General government 67.6 65.2 - - 67.6 65.2 3.7%
Public safety:
Corrections and detention 44.6 42.9 - - 44.6 429 4.0%
Fire protection 55.6 50.9 - - 55.6 50.9 9.2%
Police protection 109.7 102.7 - - 109.7 102.7 6.8%
Cultural and recreation 82.1 66.8 - - 82.1 66.8 22.9%
Public works 10.4 9.3 - - 10.4 9.3 11.8%
Health 13.4 11.1 - - 13.4 11.1 20.7%
Human services 50.6 48.5 - - 50.6 48.5 4.3%
Housing 6.2 34 - - 6.2 34 82.4%
Highways and streets 12.0 18.3 - - 12.0 18.3 -34.4%
Special assessments 33 6.6 - - 33 6.6 -50.0%
Interest expense 13.8 15.9 - - 13.8 15.9 -13.2%
Airport - - 54.6 53.1 54.6 53.1 2.8%
Refuse Disposal - - 414 394 41.4 39.4 51%
Transit - - 379 29.8 37.9 29.8 27.2%
Non major enterprise funds - - 41.9 40.7 41.9 40.7 2.9%
Total expenses 469.3 441.6 175.8 163.0 645.1 604.6 6.7%
Excess (deficiency) before transfers 163.9 125.5 9.7 0.1 173.6 125.6 38.2%
Write off of Capital Assets (45.49) - (1.3) - (46.7) - —
Transfers (25.9) (25.6) 25.9 25.6 - - —
Increase (decrease) in net assets S 926 $ 9.9 $ 343 S 25.7 $ 1269 S 125.6 1.0%

*  Restated see note 22
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CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2005

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, continued

Analysis of Changes in Net Assets, continued

The City's overall net assets increased by $126.9 million during the current fiscal year. This does not include
depreciation expense on infrastructure assets of governmental activities that have not been capitalized from
fiscal years ending after June 30, 1980 through the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001. The decrease in net assets
is explained in the governmental and business-type activities discussion below.

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City's net assets by $92.6 million.

Since the City has not capitalized infrastructure assets acquired prior to the fiscal year ending June 30, 2001,
the change in net assets does not reflect depreciation expense on those assets. City staff estimates that the
depreciation expense on roadways could exceed $40 million. The inclusion of that depreciation expense plus
the amount to be recorded for storm sewers and bike trails could result in a very small positive change in net
assets or possibly result in a negative change in net assets.

A comparison of revenues with the prior year is provided below:
Gross receipts tax revenue and state shared taxes grew 12.6% as compared to the prior year.

Investment earnings were increased from $4.3 million in fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, to $12.5 million in the
current year. The primary cause for this increase was the growth in the investment market experienced by
virtually all governments and an increase in investment balances during the year.

Intergovernmental revenues plus operating and capital contributions from sources other than state shared
taxes was decreased by $4.4 million.

Other revenues for the current year were generally equivalent to or higher than the previous fiscal year.

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City's net assets by $34.3 million. Key factors of
this increase are as follows:

The Airport fund had an increase in net assets of $16.0 million in fiscal year 2005 compared to a $2.2 million
increase in 2004. The passenger facilities charges (PFC) increased slightly from the prior year. The
September 11, 2001 events continued to have a slightly negative impact on the level of air travel in fiscal year
2005. In addition, the growth in the investment market resulted in an increase in investment earnings to a net
gain of $0.8 million offset by unrealized losses of $0.1 million.

For the Refuse Disposal fund, the reported change in net assets of $2.0 million was decreased from $3.8 million
in fiscal year 2004. The primary change was due to increased interest expenses and transfers out.

For the Transit Fund, the current year change in net assets was $16.3 million compared to $9.6 million for the

prior year. The increase was primarily due to an increase in the capital contribution of $13.9 for capital assets
purchased or constructed in the Capital Acquisition Fund. The increase in the capital contribution was offset

by an increase in fuels, repairs, maintenance and other operating expenses; and the subsidy transfer from the

General Fund decreased by $0.2 million.

The Stadium Fund and the Apartment Fund were included for the first time in fiscal year 2003 with net
operating revenues of $4.0 million. For fiscal year 2005 those revenues were $4.6 million as compared to
revenues of $4.9 million in 2004,
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CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2005

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.

Governmental funds

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of resources that are available for spending. Such information is useful in assessing the City's
financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balances may serve as a useful measure of a
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. Types of Governmental funds
reported by the City include the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds, Capital Project
Funds, and Permanent Funds.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$372.3 million, an increase of $16.2 million in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 73.9% of this
amount, $275.0 million, is unreserved fund balance available for spending at the government's discretion.
Included in unreserved fund balance is $156.2 million in the Capital Acquisition Fund. The remainder of fund
balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been committed:
1) to fund continued programs or projects in future fiscal periods ($38.2 million); 2) for acquisition and
management of open space and urban enhancement ($22.9 million); and 3) to show the fund balance
representing advances to other funds and other assets not available for spending ($28.4 million).

Revenues for governmental functions overall totaled approximately $640.0 million in the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2005, which represents an increase of $64.2 million from the prior year. The major causes for the
increase were: 1) tax revenues increased by $36.9 million; 2) intergovernmental revenues increased by $21.5
million caused by an increase of state shared gross receipts tax; and 3) interest income increased by $8.4
million in interest income.

Expenditures for governmental functions of $731.6 million increased by $115.1 million from the previous year
total of $616.5 million. The primary cause of the increase was from increased debt service requirements of
$27.6 million, increased expenditures of $42.0 million for capital outlay, and $44.4 million for public safety,
culture and recreation, highways and streets, health and human services and housing. These increased
expenditures generally reflect an increased demand and need for public services.

General Fund.

This is the City's chief operating fund. At the end of the current fiscal year, the total fund balance was $85.4
million, of which $42.7 million is available as an unreserved fund balance. The reserved fund balance of $42.7
million is designated: 1) for unanticipated expenditures ($38.2 million equaling 10.36% of recurring
expenditures); and 2) to indicate that non-current financial resource assets of $4.5 million are unavailable to
spend or already are committed for spending. The net change in fund balance for the current fiscal year was
an increase of $20.6 million.

The total revenues of $411.3 million for the current fiscal year were $42.4 million greater than for the previous
fiscal year. The increase largely resulted from an increase of $33.3 million in gross receipts tax revenues, $6.9
million in intergovernmental revenues, $1.3 million in property taxes, $1.3 million in licenses and permits, $1.2
million in interest revenues and $1.0 million in charges for services.
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CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2005

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS, continued

Total expenditures of $337.8 million represent an increase of $39.2 million over the previous fiscal year. The
major cause of this increase was $23.5 million for police and fire protection due to an increased emphasis on
public safety while the expenditures for general government decreased by $1.0 miilion. Additional increases in
expenditures from the previous fiscal year are for culture and recreation ($8.1 million), health and human
services (36.3 million) and highways and streets (31.7 million). See the General Fund budgetary highlights for
an analysis with respect to budgets.

Proprietary funds

The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information presented in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail,

At the end of the fiscal year, the unrestricted net assets (in millions) were as follows:

Airport Fund $134
Refuse Disposal Fund 6.2
Transit Fund 24
Nonmajor enterprise funds _131

s 351

Internal service funds, which are used to account for certain governmental activities, had deficit unrestricted
net assets of $3.3 million. The Risk Management fund, an internal service fund, had deficit unrestricted net
assets of $8.7 million resulting from unanticipated judgment awards and claims against the City in prior years.
The City is currently in a five-year recovery plan to reduce the deficit unrestricted net assets to zero by the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2007. All other internal service funds had positive unrestricted net assets.

Fiduciary funds
The only fund in this category is the City's Trust and Agency fund. This fund is used by the City to account

for funds held for third parties.

General Fund budgetary highlights
The City’s final FY05 budget did not differ significantly from the original budget, primarily because the

growth in gross receipts tax revenues and other revenue sources was equal to or greater than forecasted
growth. Revenues and expenses were monitored closely throughout the year and new disciplinary procedures
put in place in FY03 regarding budgetary responsibility remain in place. These actions resulted in actual
expenditures being $8.7 million less than the original budget and $16.3 million less than the budget as last
approved mid-year. General government activities actually returned unused monies to the General Fund in
the amount of $4.4 million, based on the last mid-year budget. All General Fund agencies continue to answer
the call for budgetary responsibility by carefully controlling their expenses and returning funds.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS, continued

Revenues continued to be very difficult to predict during this fiscal year with mixed economic indicators and
activities. Gross receipts tax revenues showed overall strength in virtually every sector, and construction
permit revenues continued with unprecedented growth. Revenues were $20.7 million greater than anticipated
in the original budget and $7.4 million more than the budget as last projected at mid-year. Gross receipts tax
(local option and state shared), a major component of the City’s operating revenue came in at $3.2 million
more than the last revised budget estimate and $15.5 million more than the original budget. Revenues were
weaker than budgeted in indirect overhead and CIP funded positions as personnel positions were reduced and
government construction activity was less than originally anticipated. In contrast, revenues from licenses and
permits of $15.0 million were higher than projected as a result of continued, unusual strength in the
construction area, primarily new residential construction as well as substantial state and federal government
road construction within the City.

The Department of Mupicipal Development, created early in FY04 for the purpose of coordinating CIP
activities, continued to be very successful in implementing and completing both bond and general fund
projects. Backlogs were reduced substantially from $170.9 million at the beginning of the fiscal year to $121.0
million at the end of the fiscal year. This successful effort contributed to the growth in gross receipts tax
revenues.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMIN ISTRATION

Capital Assets

The City's capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2005, amount to $1.4
billion (net of accumulated depreciation). Capital assets include land, buildings, infrastructure, improvements
other than buildings, and equipment. The total increase in the City's capital assets for the current fiscal year
was $129.1 million or 9.8% from fiscal year 2004.

CAPITAL ASSETS
(net of depreciation, in millions of dollars)
Total
Governmental Business-type Percentage
Activities Activities Total Change
2005 2004** 2005 2004** 2005 2004** 2004-2005
Land * $ 2318 $ 2159 S 595§ 585 g 2913 § 2744 6.2
Other * 1.8 0.9 0.7 0.7 2.6 1.6 61.4
Buildings and improvements 133.8 1332 214.6 1912 348.4 324.3 74
Runways and improvements - - 97.1 103.8 97.1 103.8 64
Improvements othcr than
buildings and runways 146.3 1563 41.8 35.1 188.0 1913 -1.7
Equipment 24 357 43.7 36.5 46.2 72.2 -35.9
Infrastructure 70.2 71.6 - - 70.2 71.6 -94
Construction in progress * 3674 2235 28.5 41.8 395.9 265.3 49.2
Total $ 9537 $ 8430 S 48.1 $ 4675 S 14398 $ 1,310.5 9.9
* Assets not depreciated
** Restated see note 22

-24-



CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2005

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION, continued
Major capital asset events during the current fiscal Year included the following:

In governmental activities, land was acquired for open space costing $10.2 million, and replacement vehicles
were acquired for the police (5.2 million) and for fire ($3.7 million). The construction work in progress
increased by $130.6 million primarily due to the continuing facility development at the Balloon Fiesta Park
Museum, a major expansion of the Albuquerque Museum, the redevelopment of Tingley Beach linking the
north and south ends of the BioPark and other facilities development.

In business-type activities, additions to equipment included new transit vehicles ($8.2 million) and new solid
waste vehicles and heavy equipment ($5.8 million). The increase in buildings and improvements includes the
Westside Transit Facility ($20.9 million), the Uptown Transit Facility ($1.0 million) and for the Housing Fund
(33.1 million). The Aviation Fund had additions to runways and improvements ($4.1 million) and to
improvements other than buildings and runways ($10.7 million). The construction work in progress decreased
by $13.2 million. The major expenditures in construction work in progress consisted of improvements to the
Sunport and construction on the new Westside Transit Facility.

More detailed information may be found in Note 8 of the accompanying financial statements.

Debt Administration :

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total long-term obligations of $829.1 million of which $115.7
million is due within the next fiscal year. The total bonded debt (net of unamortized discounts, deferred
amounts on refunding and including unam ortized premiums) is $733.0 million. The remaining debt is for
loans, accrued vacation and sick leave pay, and claims payable.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005 the City issued bonds for $183.1 million. Bond proceeds were
deposited into the Capital Acquisition Fund for the betterment of parks and recreation, the BioPark, libraries,
museums, senior citizen centers, community centers, public transportation facilities and for improvements to
the storm sewer system.

The ratio of net general obligation bonded debt to taxable valuation and the amount of bonded debt per capita
are useful indicators to management, citizens and investors of the City's debt position. The State's
Constitution provides for a legal debt limit of 4% of taxable valuation. The percentage for the City of
Albuquerque is 2.7% of the $8.3 billion taxable value of property within the City's boundaries. The City
currently may issue up to an additional $63.2 million of general obligation bonds. It has $268.4 million of
general obligation debt outstanding subject to the legal debt limit at June 30, 2005. The net general bonded
debt per capita is $619.52. The highest per capita amount in the last ten fiscal years was $619.52 in the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2005 and the lowest per capita amount was $213.73 in the fiscal year ended June 20, 2002.

The City's ratings on uninsured general obligation bonds remained unchanged from the prior year and as of
June 30, 2005 were:

Moody's Investors Service, Inc. Aa3
Standard & Poor's Ratings Service AA
Fitch, Inc. AA

More detailed information may be found in Note 10 and Note 25 of the accompanying financial statements.
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES

The City’s elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2006 budget.
Many of the City’s revenues are influenced by the economy. The gross receipts tax revenue forecast,
particularly, is highly influenced by economic conditions. The budget contemplates growth in gross receipts
tax revenues over the prior year, reflecting slightly stronger economic conditions both nationally and locally.

Construction employment in the area has remained unusually high, particularly with respect to residential
construction, with a modest increase in commercial construction during the last part of the 2005 fiscal year.
The budget contemplates that these high levels will not be sustained throughout the year, although reduced
levels of residential and commercial construction are expected to be somewhat offset by continuing state and
federal highway construction with the City.

Charges for entry into some City venues and for certain City services are unchanged in the fiscal year 2006
budget. However, the budget does include revenues from new City venues, particularly the Balloon Museum,
scheduled to open in October, 2005.

Property tax revenues continue to grow as the economy expands. One mill of taxing authority was converted
from capital to operations during fiscal year 2004. A state imposed limitation on assessed value for residential
properties is not expected to have a major fiscal impact in the near term.

Revenues for internal services continue to decline as the City reduces its direct provision of office services,
building alternations, surveying and engineering inspections, all of which are available through the private
sector.

During the 2004 legislative session, legislation to repeal the gross receipts tax on food and certain medical
services effective January 1, 2005 was enacted. In an attempt to hold local governments harmless, the
distribution to cities of the state-shared gross receipts tax was increased. This increased distribution was to be
funded by the state by a repeal of the half-cent credit against local option impositions, also effective January 1,
2005. Distributions for the first three months after January 1, 2005, were materially reduced from the same
periods in the prior year, primarily due to incorrect reporting by merchants and implementation issues at the
state Taxation and Revenue Department. The City worked actively with the Taxation and Revenue
Department to identify the reasons for the lowered distributions, and by June 30, 2005, the major problems
seem to have been resolved.

In the October, 2003 general municipal election, the voters approved a gross receipts tax increase of one-
quarter percent (0.25%) to be dedicated to public safety. Fire is to receive 33% of the revenues, police 33%,
corrections 8% and social services for prevention and intervention 25% each year. The tax was expected to
generate about $27.8 million on an annual basis when it was effective on July 1, 2004. The fiscal year 2006
budget reflects estimated tax proceeds of $32.65 million for a full twelve months.

Also in the October 2003 general municipal election, the voters rejected the streets and roads bond question.
Because of the potentially negative impact on the City’s infrastructure program, the question was again put to
the voters during the general state election in November 2004. The streets and roads bond question passed by
a majority in November 2004.
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES, continued

During the 2003 legislative session, legislation was enacted that transferred “all functions, appropriations,
money, records, equipment and other real and personal property pertaining to the Albuquerque water and
wastewater utility” to a newly created entity, the Albuquerque-Bernalillo Water Utility Authority. Existing
debt of the utility became the debt of the Authority, but the Authority was not to impair the rights of any
bondholders of outstanding bonds. All contractual obligations of the existing proprietary activity were to be
binding on the Authority. Although the legislation had an effective date of June 20, 2003, an audit by the
Public Regulation Commission was a condition precedent to the transfer of money, assets and debts to the
Authority. That audit was completed in late December 2003 and the transfer to the Authority was made
effective July 1, 2003. Concurrently with the transfer, the Authority entered into a six-month Memorandum of
Understanding with the City to administer the water and wastewater utility. That Memorandum of
Understanding was subsequently extended to June 30, 2006. The Authority retains the authority and
obligation to determine and impose rates for services.

The following table presents the underlying assumptions used in the budget process:

Economic Assumptions Underlying theRevenue Estimates

October-2004
Fiscal Year 2004 2005 2006
National Variables
% Chg Real GDP 4.4% 3.8% 3.1%
% Chg Non-Farm Employment 0.2% 1.6% 1.5%
Federal Funds Rate 1.0% 2.0% 3.1%
10 U.S. Bonds . 4.3% 4.5% 5.1%
% Chg CPI U 2.2% 2.5% 1.4%
Per bbl Price of Qil (WTI) $ 338 $ 440 $ 376
Unemployment Rate(U.S.) 5.8% 5.4% 5.4%
% Chg in Personal Income 3.7% 5.3% 4.9%
New Mexico Economy
% Chg Total Non-Agricultural Employment 1.5% 2.3% 21%
% Chg Personal Income 6.1% 5.9% 5.0%
Unemployment Rate 6.0% 5.7% 5.7%
Albuquerque MSA Economy
% Chg Total Non-Agricultural Employment 1.0% 2.4% 2.7%
% Chg Construction Employment 5.2% 5.2% 3.9%
% Chg Personal Income 4.3% 57% 5.6%
Unemployment Rate (Alb.) 5.2% 4.7% 4.6%
Construction Units Permited in City of Albuquerque
Single-Family Permits 5,050 4,884 4,404
Muli-Family Permits 1,000 603 679
Total Residential Permits 6,050 5,487 5,083

Source: October 2004 baseline forecasts. National source is Global Insight Inc. Local
variables from University of New Mexico, Bureau of Business and Economic Research
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES, continued

The total General Fund appropriation for fiscal year 2006 is $446.5 million before interfund eliminations and
$381.1 million after eliminations. Total appropriation increased by $44.7 million, which is an 11.1% increase
over the original fiscal year 2005 budget. Recurring appropriations increased by 7.4%, while non-recurring
appropriations increased by 101.7%, primarily due to the use of fund balances.

The international, national, state and local economies have shown modest growth following the 2001-2002
recession, but recent increases in the prices of oil and natural gas, bring concern about the effects it will have
on the City’s 2006 budget. Costs for items such as fleet and building operations are escalating rapidly. These
price increases also have negative impacts on revenues as consumers spend more on gasoline and fewer dollars
are available to spend on items subject to the gross receipts tax. However, the City continues to diligently
monitor expenditures along with revenues so that it can respond quickly should changes be required.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors with a
general overview of the City's finances and to demonstrate the City's accountability for the money it receives.
If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Director's office
for the Department of Finance and Administrative Services of the City at Director's Office, DFAS, Room
11015, One Civic Plaza N.W., Albuquerque, New Mexico 87102.
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Exhibit A-1

Page 1 of 2
CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
23 June 30, 2005
i
Primary Government
Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Unit
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash, investments and accrued interest § 294,996,644 S 32,433,204 S 327,429.848 $ 5,061,038
Cash with fiscal agents held for debt service 73,264,139 19,053,615 92,317,754 37,468,373
Cash held by others 95,866 636,984 732,850 -
Taxes receivable (note 5) 64,318,568 - 64,318,568 -
Accounts receivable,
net of allowance for uncollectible accounts 7,012,134 7,080,636 14,092,770 9,389,901
Notes receivable, current portion - - - 1,086,835
Due from other governments 15,750,940 2,819,949 18,570,889 414,377
Deposits 112,679 - 112,679 -
Internal balances 22,200,000 (22,200,000) - -
Inventories 2,549,665 2,163,420 4,713,085 -
Prepaid expenses 351,036 38,366 389,402 -
Total current assets 480,651,671 42,026,174 522,677,845 53,420,524
Noncurrent assets:
Long-term accounts and notes receivable 18,113,532 - 18,113,532 6,087,640
Restricted assets:
Cash, investments and accrued interest 95,374,426 133,083,007 228,457,433 113,562,178
Investment with fiscal agents - - - 1,305,116
Accounts receivable - developers - 3,626,651 3.626,651 -
Accounts receivable from bond escrow agent - 534,799 534,799 -
Escrow deposits : - 626,138 626,138 145398
Total restricted assets: 95,374,426 137,870,595 233.245.021 115,012,692
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress 601,008,355 88,785,230 689,793,585 111,144,642
Capital assets being depreciated 703,460,691 871,684,467 1.575,145,158 1,445,752,460
Accumulated depreciation (350,761.804) (474,.417.374) (825,179,178) {739,667,785)
Capital assets, net of depreciation 953,707,242 486,052,323 1.439,759.565 817229317
Other:
Purchased water rights, net of
accumulated amortization - - - 28,600,649
Capitalized bond issue costs - 2,461,504 2,461,504 1,138,163
Deferred charges and other assets 8.656,019 - 8,656,019 -
Total other 8.656,019 2461504 11,117.523 29,738.812
Total noncurrent assets 1.075.851.219 626,384,422 1,702,235,641 968,068,461
Total assets 1.556.502.890 668.410.596 2.224,913.486 1.021,488.985

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other governments
Accrued expenses
Deposits
Deferred revenues
Payable from restricted assets:
Contracts and other payable
Current portion:
Bonds and notes payable
Water rights and loan agreements
Accrued interest
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Landfill closure costs
Other

Total liabilkies payable from restricted assets

Long-term payable:
Bonds and notes payable, net of current
portion, discounts and premiums
Water rights contract and loan agreements

Total long-term payable

Other:
Accrued vacation, sick leave and claims
Deferred credits and other liabilities

Total other

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assess, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Debt service
Construction
Housing & economic development
Federal & state funded programs
Open space and urban enhancement:
Nonexpendable
Expendable
Unrestricted

Exhibit A-1

Page 2 of 2
CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2005
Primary Government
Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Unit
33,462,765 2,356,336 35,819,101 2,071,227
1,126,914 78,839 1,205,753 -
61,905,564 4,569,117 66,474,681 2,338476
1,098,790 589,132 1,687,922 460,378
19,050,490 - 19,050,490 -
- 7,101,098 7,101,098 19,135,695
61,923496 13,942,457 75,865,953 33,050,000
. - - 6,255273
- 5,296,606 5,296,606 5,076,732
- 2,730,916 2,730,916 -
178,568,019 36,664,501 215,232,520 68,387,781
- 1,515,176 1,515,176 -
- 228,953 228,953 -
- 1,744,129 1,744,129 -
396,836,637 273257,489 670,094,126 149,144,319
- - - 160,870203
396,836,637 273.257,489 670,094,126 310,014,522
41,792,467 1,512,084 43,304,551 580,155
1,044,189 - 1,044,189 500,000
42,836,656 1,512,084 44,348,740 1,080,155
439,673,293 276.513.702 716,186,995 311094677
618241,312 313,178,203 931,419,515 379.482458
654,090,878 237,142,685 891,233,563 566,451,130
48,852,386 14,741,431 63,593,817 11,490,993
86,521,172 68,225,283 154,746,455 26,620,816
14,297,699 - 14,297,699 -
1,169,115 - 1,169,115 -
27,022,639 - 27,022,639 -
3,179,012 - 3,179,012 -
103,128,677 35,122,994 138,251,671 37.443.588
938.261,578 355232,393 § 1,293,493971 S 642,006527

Total net assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
/ Year ended June 30, 2005
Program
—Revenues
Indirect Charges
Expenses for
Functions/Programs Expenses Allocation Services
Primary government:
Governmental Activities:
General government $ 67,551,970 $ (3,815378) $ 42,536,261
Public Safety
Corrections 44,655,145 1,510,516 24,738,451
Fire 55,630,082 135,213 380,599
Police 109,682,346 723,117 4,533,577
Culture and recreation 82,108,879 321,569 6,889,853
Public works 10,396,105 99,547 -
Health 13,370,716 256,915 4,629,482
Human services 50,571,869 371,744 2,424,030
Housing 6,198,786 73 -
Highways and streets 11,985,023 396,684 978,248
Special assessments 3,284,067 - -
Interest expense 13,815,019 - - -
Total governmental type activities 469,250,007 - 87,110,501
Business Type Activities:
Airport 54,644,728 - 64,046,597
Refuse Disposal 41,369,980 - 45,551,718
Transit 37,958,533 - 5,245,017
Nonmajor enterprise funds 41,878,871 - __14.253,172
Total business type activities 175,852,112 - 129,096,501
Total primary government $ 645,102,119 s - $ 216,207,002
Component Unit:
Albuquerque Bernalillo County Water Utility Authority S 118,909,420 s - $ 140,059,547
General Revenues:
Taxes:
Gross receipts taxes, local option
Property taxes

Payments in lieu of taxes
Franchise and hospitality taxes
Lodgers' tax
NM shared taxes and fees not restricted to specific programs
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs
Investment income
Other general revenues
Gain (loss) on disposition of capital assets
Transfers between governmental and business type activities
Total general revenues, special items and transfers
Change in net assets

Net assets (deficit), July 1, as restated
Net assets (deficit), June 30

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Exhibit A-2

Page1of 1
Program Revenues, continued Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets
Operating Capital Govern- Business
Grants and Grants and mental Type Component
Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Unit
s 337,408 s - S (20,862,923) $ - $  (20,862,923)
92,524 - (21,334,686) - (21,334,686)
484,274 1,026,352 (53,874,070) - (53,874,070)
2,755,326 - (103,116,560) - (103,116,560)
294,457 - (75,246,138) - (75,246,138)
662,125 - (9,833,527 - (9,833,527)
2,208,637 - (6,789,512) - (6,789,512)
15,018,564 - (33,501,019) - (33,501,019)
2,028,229 - (4,170,630) - (4,170,630)
6,034,251 200 (5,369,008) - (5.369,008)
- - (3,284,067) - (3,284,067)
- - (13,815,019) - (13,815,019)
29,915,795 1,026,552 (351,197,159) - (351,197,159)
- 5,817,552 - 15,219,421 15,219,421
- - - 4,181,735 4,181,735
- 23,710,984 - (9,002,532) (9,002,532)
24,750,772 363,445 - (2,511,482) (2,511,482)
24,750,772 29,891,981 - 7,887,142 7,887,142
$ 54,666,567 $ 30,918,533 (351,197,159) 7,887,142 (343,310,017)
S - $ 20,848,605 S _41.998,732
163,250,264 - 163,250,264 -
92,546,664 - 92,546,664 -
4,769,764 - 4,769,764 -
20,138,467 - 20,138,467 -
9,019,206 - 9,019,206 -
167,875,410 - 167,875,410 -
29,230,347 - 29,230,347 -
12,469,788 1,697,541 14,167,329 1,548,942
15,759,659 - 15,759,659 -
(45,363,094) (1,267,740} (46,630,834) -
(25,933,600) 25,933,600 - -
443,762,875 26,363,401 470,126,276 1,548,942
92,565,716 34,250,543 126,816,259 43,547,674
845,695,862 320,981,850 1.166,677,712 598,458,853
S 938,261,578 § 355232393 § 1,293,493,971 $ 642,006,527

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO

ASSETS

Cash, investments, and accrued interest
Cash with fiscal agents
Investments with fiscal agents
Cash held by others
Taxes receivable, net of allowance for uncollectible;
Property tax
Gross receipts tax
Lodger's tax
Hospitality tax
Other taxes
Other receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible
Due from other govemments
Due from other funds
Advances to other funds
Inventories of supplies
Prepaid items
Land held for sale

TOTAL ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2005

General
Fund

) 84,606,342

1,272,781
52,524,503

552,382
3,610,426
503,811
1,005,868
307,636
124,431
70,326

S 144578506

5

$

GO Bond
Debt Service
Fund

21,654,049
61,173,205

3,057,606

85.884.860



Capital
Acquisition
Fund

s

158,888,852

992,442

1,454,234
7,599,139

Nonmajor
Funds

)

168,934,667

79,249,393
9,779,385
1,319,107

95,866

90,046
5,570,126
920,436
330,688

20,034,702
7,580,093
22,200,000
328,746

5,065,930

Exhibit A-3
Page1 of 3

Total

$

152,564,518

344,398,636
70,952,590
2,311,549
95,866

4,420,433
58,094,629
920,436
330,688
552,382
25,099,362
15,683,043
1,005,868
22,507,636
453,177
70,326
5,065,930

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
\—  BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Contracts and retainage payable
Accrued employee compensation and benefits
Due to other funds
Due to other governments
Deferred revenue
Deposits
Advances from other funds
Matured bonds and interest payable
Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances
Inventories of supplies
Prepaid items
Land held for resale
Advances to other funds
Transfer to capital acquisition fund
Acquisition and management of open space land
Urban enhancement
Operations
Unreserved (deficit)
Unreserved (deficit) , reported in:
Special revenue funds
Debt service funds
Capital project funds
Total fund balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

June 30, 2005
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General
Fund

§ 9,232,936

17,539,519
2,303,484

29,056,952
1,021,600

59,154,491

3,964,919
124,431
70,326

307,636

38,239,000
42,717,703

85,424,015

S 144578506

$

GO Bond
Debt Service
Fund

2,041,615

61,173,205
63,224,957

22,659.903

22,659,903

S 85884860



Capital
Acquisition
Fund

11,991,338
44,960

535,792

112,000

12,684,090

60,016

156,190,561

156,250,577

Nonmajor
Funds

3,698,941
3,859,925
748312
1,005,868
1,126,914
24,260,915
77,190
195,636
9,644.260

44,617,961

Exhibit A-3
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Total

12,942,014
15,851,263
18,332,791
3,309,352
1,126,914
55,895,274
1,098,790
307,636
70,817,465

3,697,526
328,746

5,065,930
22,200,000
342,426
13,033,395
9,862,003

22,674,822
3,992,483
26,749,226

179,681,499

168,934,667

107,946,557

7,722,461
453,177
70,326
5,065,930
22,507,636
342,426
13,033,395
9,862,003
38,239,000
221,568,167

22,674,822
3,992,483
26,749,226

$

152,564,518

372,281,052

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2005
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets:
Total fund balance for governmental funds § 372,281,052
Total net assets reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets is different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not
reported in the funds. Those assets at June 30, 2005 consist of:
Land $ 231,510,170
Construction in progress and miscellaneous other 369,214,343
Buildings 174,424,371
Infrastructure 77,207,261
Improvements 328,486,974
Equipment 120,721,381
Accumulated depreciation (348,559.399)
Total capital assets 953,005,101
Long-term obligations applicable to the City's governmental activities are not due and payable
in the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities. Interest on long-term
debt is not accrued in governmental funds, but rather is recognized as an expenditure when
due. All liabilities are reported in the statement of net assets. Balances at June 30, 2005 are:
General Obligation bonds payable (239,205,000)
Sales tax revenue bonds and notes payable (143,456,299)
Special assessment debt with governmental commitment (11,884,181)
Current portion of bonds payable, net of reported matured principal 1,845,847
Unamortized bond issue costs 1,860,089
Unamortized premiums and discounts (2,291,157
Total bonds and notes payable, net of premiums, discounts and bond issue costs (393,130,701)
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay (27,130,049)
Accrued rebatable arbitrage payable reported as deferred credit (1,044,189)
(421,304,939)
Internal service funds are used by the City to charge the cost of tort liability, workers
compensation and employee health insurance to other individual funds. 1n addition, the cost of
providing communications, fleet maintenance and supplies warehousing services are also
charged. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental
activities in the statement of net assets. Internal service fund net assets (deficit) are: (2,590,724)
Some of the City's taxes will be collected after year-end and amounts due on real estate
contracts are not available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures, and
therefore are reported as deferred revenue in the funds. The amounts are:
Gross receipts tax 30,198,743
Property taxes 3,728,993
Other taxes 676,725
Amounts due on real estate contracts 2,240,323
36,844,784
Interest earned on loans receivable are not available for collection and are not included in the
governmental fund financial statements. However, the accrued interest is reported in the
government-wide financial statements. 26,304
Total net assets of governmental activities $ 938,261,578

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
-37-
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CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO

\/ ' STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-

Revenues:;
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmentsal
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Interest
Special assessments
Collections on real estate contracts receivable
Proceeds from disposition of capital assets
Other interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
General government
Public safety
Culture and recreation
Public works
Highways and streets
Health
Human services
Housing

Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest
Fiscal agent fees and other fees

Capital outlay

Bond issuance costs

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Proceeds of notes payable and bonds issued
Proceeds from refunding bonds
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances (deficit), July 1

Fund balances (deficit), June 30

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financiai statements

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year ended June 30, 2005

- 38

-

General
Fund

5 183,811,873
15,025,888
167,850,561
42,109,899
159,120

1,590,015

787,185
411,334,541

58,612,909
163,130,428
57,241,949
8,443,710
9,817,193
8,698,900
31,903,406

337,848.495

73,486,046

2,471,937
(55,320,250)

52,848,313
20,637,733

64,786,282

S 85424015

GO Bond
Debt Service
Fund

3 66,046,681

1,129,428

67,176,109

87355917
1,747A57
665,129

379,706
96148209

28,972,100

5,474,106

5,474,106

(23,497,994)

46157897

S 22659903



Capital

Acquisition

Fund

400,934

29,230,347

1,875376

3,715237

35,221,894

142,187,186

142,187,186

(106,965,292)

9,595,194
(1,558,557)
127,875,917

135,912,554

28,947,262

127,303,315

156,250,577

Nonmajor

Funds

39,310,320
2,775,243
54,245,077
9,304,607
998,116
7,543,630
5,147,531
243,263
274,647
158,896
6,242,319

126,243,649

10,236,582
53,081,945
6,143,346
746,123
5,748,983
5,089,967
20,247,390
6,199,308

8,135,965
6,159,507
1,260,815
32,381,819

155,431,750

(29,188,101)

42,021,124
(22,874,048)

61,147,085
(61,023,204)

19,270,957

(9,917,144)

117,863,701

s

107,946,557

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Total

289,569,808
17,801,131
251,325,985
51,414,506
1,157,236
12,138,449
5,147,531
243263
274,647
158,896
10,744,741

639,976,193

68,849,491
216,212,373
63,385,295
9,189,833
15,566,176
13,788,867
52,150,796
6,199,308

95,491,382
13,906,964
1,925,944
174,569,005
379,706

731,615,640

(91,639,447)

54,088,255
(79,752,855)
133,350,023

61,147,085
(61,023,204)

107,809,304

16,169,857

356,111,195

372,281,052
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CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the year ended June 30, 2005

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance to the Statement of Net Activities:

Net change in fund balances - total governmentai funds $ 16,169,857

The change in net assets reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities is
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense.

Capital outlay expenditures $ 185,879,057
Depreciation expense (29,796,654)
Gain (loss) on disposition of capital assets (45,363,094)
110,719,309

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to

governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the

current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect

on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts,

and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized

in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment

of long-term debt and related items. (35,584,427)

Internal service funds are used by the City to charge the cost of tort liability, workers

compensation and employee heaith insurance to other individual funds. In addition, the cost of

providing communications, fleet maintenance and supplies warehousing services are also

charged. The net revenue (loss) of the internal service funds is reported with governmental

activities. 4,721,768

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in the governmental funds, revenue is
recognized when available to provide financing resources for the current period. Likewise,
expenditures are not recognized for transactions that are not normally paid with expendable
available financial resources. In the statement of activities, however, which is presented on the
accrual basis, revenues and related receivable and expenses and related liabilities are reported
regardless of when financial resources are available. This adjustment combines the net change
of balances of the following:

Revenue:
Gross receipts tax 183,809
Property tax 73,118
Other taxes 12,632
Collections on real estate contracts, net of deferred gains (212,7249)
Expenses:
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay (3,573,065)
Rebatable arbitrage 55,439
Net adjustment (3,460,791)
Change in net assets of governmental activities S 92,565,716

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
-49-
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CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
Year ended June 30, 2005
Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes:
Current property tax $ 23,994,000 $ 24,670,000 $ 25,304,885 S 634,885
Delinquent property tax 1,052,000 740,000 848,252 108,252
Franchise taxes:
Telephone 3,995,000 3,565,000 3,332,028 (232,972)
Electric 5,904,000 5,904,000 5,728,200 (175,800)
Gas 3,449,000 4,388,000 4,686,513 298,513
Cable television 3,367,000 3,367,000 3,421,843 54,843
New Mexico Utility 184,000 220,000 207,281 (12,719)
Telecommunications 524,000 674,000 577,191 (96,809)
Payments in lieu of Taxes 5,144,000 4,927,000 4,769,764 (157,236)
Gross receip(s tax-local op(ion 128,037,000 133,565,000 134,935,916 1,370,916
Total taxes 175,650,000 182,020,000 183,811,873 1,791,873
Licenses and permits:
Liguor licenses 216,000 214,000 189,665 (24,335)
Building permits 3,585,000 4,068,000 5,034,048 966,048
Plumbing/mechanical permits 1,615,000 1,588,000 1,764,817 176,817
Electrical/refrigeration permits 1,170,000 1,082,000 1,181,306 99,306
Plan checking permits 2,600,000 2,670,000 3,543,263 873,263
Flood plain certification 173,000 346,000 293,736 (52,264)
Reroofing permits . 34,000 32,000 92,198 60,198
Restaurant inspections 551,000 560,000 631,260 71,260
Food retailers inspections 135,000 110,000 171,465 61,465
Swimming pool inspections 120,000 120,000 129,815 9,815
Animal licenses 250,000 275,000 353,871 78.871
Right of way usage permits 140,000 176,000 158,810 (17,190)
Loading zone permits 9,000 - 12,138 12,138
Solicitation permits 6,000 6,000 7,475 1,475
Business registration fees 1,240,000 1,200,000 1,237,264 37,264
Other licenses and permi(s 173,000 178,000 224,757 46,757
Total licenses and permits 12,017.000 12,625,000 15,025,888 2,400,888
Intergovernmental:
State shared:
Gross receipts tax 154,006,000 160,782,000 162,583,140 1,801,140
Cigarette tax 612,000 580,000 552,224 (27,776)
Motor vehicle license distribution 1,428,000 1,331,000 1,426,523 95,523
Municipal road - gas tax 2,497,000 2,300,000 2,360,979 60,979
DWI Fines 515,000 400,000 451,090 51,090
Grants:
Other - 143,000 144,691 1,691
Local administered grants:
Bernalillo County-shared operations 279,000 359,000 331,914 (27.086)
Total intergovernmental 159,337,000 165,895,000 167,850,561 1,955,561
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements e
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CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND

Year ended June 30, 2005
Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Paositive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues (continued):
Charges for services:

General government:
Photocopying 185,000 153,000 145,081 (7,919)
Engineering fees 1,100,000 1,600,000 2,092,795 492,795
Filing of plats and subdivisions 332,000 432,000 476,632 44,632
Sign fees 53,000 84,000 107,749 23,749
Zoning fence permit fees 146,000 203,000 246,536 43,536
Sale of maps and publications 31,000 5,000 16,420 11,420
Records search fees 290,000 350,000 563,141 213,141
Jury duty and witness fees 13,000 13,000 4,163 (8,837)
Planning services 38,000 32,000 36,165 4,165
Vendor registration fees 20,000 20,000 17,220 (2,780)
Shooting range fees 180,000 220,000 216,077 (3,923)
Grounds maintenance 521,000 521,000 520,987 (13)
Office services 35,000 35,000 36,518 1,518
Real property services 70,000 70,000 63,432 (6,568)
Material testing lab - - 16,152 16,152
Engineering inspections 100,000 100,000 180,551 80,551
Engineering surveying 5,000 5,000 5,733 733
Legal services 2,567,000 2,114,000 1,985,684 (128,316)
Administrative fees 43,000 88,000 100,016 12,016
Administrative charges to other funds 23,780,000 23,669,000 22,914,899 (754,101)
Other 740,000 785,000 812,476 27,476

Public safety:
Police services 2,175,000 2,050,000 2,450,734 400,734
Fire services 282,000 308,000 380,599 72,599

Culture and recreation:
Community centers 32,000 32,000 25,673 (6,327)
Swimming pools 500,000 500,000 510,081 10,081
Outdoor recreation fees - - 2,119 2,119
Sports programs 576,000 576,000 438,646 (137,354)
Other recreation charges 271,000 251,000 252,827 1,827
Tournament/field rental 33,000 33,000 39,472 6,472
Latch key program 820,000 770,000 766,191 (3,809)
Extended care fees 42,000 42,000 44,843 2,843
Special events 6,000 5,000 3,307 (1,693)
Special events parking - - 579 579
Museum charges 102,000 85,000 101,963 16,963
Zoo admissions 1,829,000 1,829,000 1,754,100 (74,900)
Other zoo charges 51,000 51,000 86,992 35,992
Albuquerque aquarium and gardens 986,000 986,000 1,064,347 78,347
Convention center - - 196,591 196,591
Facilities concessions 15,000 172,000 139,089 (32,911)
Library services 1,380,000 1,164,000 1,148,331 (15,669)
Cultural affairs 25,000 30,000 39,619 9,619

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Revenues (continued):
Charges for services (continued):
Highways and streets:
Compaction tests
Excavation permits
Other street division charges
Health:
Animal control charges
Human services:
Meal programs
Memberships
Coffee
Dances
DSA Route #2
Other
Total charges for services

Fines and forfeits:

Air quality penalties
Total fines and forfeits

Interest:
Interest on investments

Miscellaneous:
Rental of City property
Community center rentals
Revenue sharing agreement
Sales of real property
Collections from property damage
Contributions and donations
Cash overages and shortages, net
Cash discounts earned
Other miscellaneous

Total miscellaneous

Exhibit A-5

Page 3 of 6
CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
TATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
Year ended June 30, 2005
Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
180,000 170,000 161,092 (8,908)
425,000 360,000 367,936 7,936
189,000 434,000 437,082 3,082
351,000 400,000 749,094 349,094
160,000 160,000 157,084 (2,916)
94,000 94,000 131,219 37,219
14,000 14,000 16,034 2,034
33,000 32,000 42,516 10,516
- 28,000 16,373 (11,627)
20,000 19,000 26,939 7,939
41,140,000 41,094,000 42,109,899 1,015,899
5,000 91,000 159,120 68,120
5,000 91,000 159,120 68,120
1,900,000 1,500,000 1,590,015 90,015
180,000 140,000 140,755 755
228,000 270,000 288,440 18,440
- - 10,827 10,827
30,000 - 129,811 129,811
- - 2,465 2,465
80,000 20,000 21,571 1,571
- - 110 110
52,000 - 63.202 63,202
42,000 300,000 130,004 (169,996)
612,000 730,000 787,185 57,185
390,661,000 403,955,000 411,334,541 7.379,541

Total revenues

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
Year ended June 30, 2005
Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government:
Accounting 2,665,000 2,799,000 2,676,709 122,291
Chief Administrative Officer 1,713,000 1,713,000 1,579,821 133,179
City buildings 6,266,000 6,292,000 6,164,542 127,458
City wide financial support 585,000 585,000 517,499 67,501
City/County building rental 2,789,000 2,789,000 2,789,000 -
Community revitalization 1,508,000 1,708,000 1,293,747 414,253
Compensation in lieu of sick leave 350,000 350,000 238,331 111,669
Council services 1,891,000 2,572,500 1,810,825 761,675
Design - municipal devlp 579,000 579,000 493,020 85,980
Design recovered - municipal devip 2,413,792 2,413,792 2,203,160 210,632
Design recovery storm 2,675,208 2,675,208 2,412,060 263,148
DFAS - Strategic support 317,000 317,000 285,329 31,671
Dues and memberships 542,000 542,000 475,981 66,019
Early retirement 5,500,000 6,700,000 6,699,127 873
Economic development 50,000 50,000 50,000 -
Information systems 7,570,000 7,997,000 7,759,686 237,314
International trade 238,000 238,000 211,878 26,122
ISD CIP funded 327,000 327,000 244,495 82,505
Water utility - 927,922 927,922 -
Legal services 4,861,000 4,928,000 4,603,020 324,980
Legislative coordinator 224,000 224,000 226,500 (2,500)
Mayor's office 728,000 728,000 592,396 135,604
Municipal devlp - Strategic support 1,195,000 1,197,000 1,105,681 91,319
Office of city clerk 1,273,000 1,323,000 1,262,501 60,499
Office of economic development 837,000 1,050,000 951,199 98,801
Office of internal audit 1,185,000 1,189,000 674,489 514,511
Office of management and budget 1,250,000 1,250,000 1,087,404 162,596
Personnel services 2,171,000 2,195,000 2,141,382 53,618
Planning - Strategic support 956,000 956,000 934,709 21,291
Plaza del Sol building 1,108,000 1,108,000 1,108,000 -
Purchasing 1,071,000 1,071,000 1,010,834 60,166
Real property 487,000 487,000 453,428 33,572
Risk five year recovery plan 1,494,000 1,494,000 1,494,000 -
Treasury 1,358,000 1,358,000 1,263,165 94,835
Safe eity strike force 899,000 899,000 871,069 27,931
Total general government 59,076,000 63,032,422 58.612,909 4,419,513

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Public safety:
Police Department:
Central support services
Investigative services
Neighborhood Policing
Off duty police overtime
Fire Department:
AFD headquarters
Dispatch
Fire dept/CIP funded employees
Fire dept/technical services
Fire prevention/fire marshal's office
Fire suppression
Fire training and safety
Logistics
Paramedic rescue
Total public safety

Culture and recreation:
Biological park
CIP Biopark
CIP library
Citizen Services
Community events
Convention center
Explora Science Center
Museum
Quality parks & trails system
Strategic support - CS
Strategic support - Senior Affairs
Strategic support - PR
Parks land management
Promote safe use of firearms
Provide community recreation
Provide quality recreation
Public library
Tourism - convention center
Special events parking

Total culture and recreation

Public works:
Code administration
Construction management
Strategic support
Street CIP trans infrastructure tx
Storm drainage/maintenance
Total public works

Highways and streets:
GF street services

Exhibit A-S
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CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
Year ended June 30, 2005
Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual __(Negative)
28,332,000 28,732,000 28,366,567 365,433
20,146,000 20,146,000 19,318,869 827,131
58,954,000 58,653,000 57,505,383 1,147,617
1,072,000 1,072,000 1,060,766 11,234
2,461,000 2,461,000 2,036,105 424,895
2,590,000 2,590,000 2,570,216 19,784
92,000 92,000 161,641 (69,641)
448,000 448,000 430,881 17,119
3,159,000 3,159,000 3,153,021 5979
42,312,000 42,312,000 41,919,479 392,521
2,285,000 2,287,000 2,140,693 146,307
4,910,000 4,910,000 4,404,319 505,681
- - 62,488 (62,488)
166,761,000 166,862,000 163,130,428 3,731,572
9,861,000 9,866,000 9,848,603 17,397
1,945,000 1,945,000 1,482,603 462,397
49,000 49,000 50,755 (1,755)
1,453,000 1,453,000 807,196 645,804
2,127,000 2,727,000 2,375,028 351,972
1,300,000 1,300,000 1,301,969 (1,969)
3,992,000 4,092,000 3,980,969 111,031
1,026,000 1,026,000 1,021,108 4,892
1,312,000 1,320,000 1,182,081 137,919
956,000 956,000 883,397 72,603
12,080,000 12,096,000 11,868,928 227,072
292,000 292,000 289,646 2,354
6,160,000 6,311,000 6,078,783 232217
3,945,000 4,176,000 3,970,415 205,585
9,779,060 9,779,000 9,773,250 5,750
2,041,000 2,597,000 2,308,243 288,757
19,000 19,000 18,975 25
58,337,000 60,004,000 57,241,949 2,762,051
2,622,000 2,622,000 2,567,743 54,257
2,314,000 2,314,000 2,221,509 92,491
200,000 200,000 84,480 115,520
1,945,000 1,945,000 1,778,117 166,883
1,925,000 1,925,000 1,791,861 133,139
9,006,000 9,006,000 8,443,710 562,290
9,886,000 9,986,000 9,817,193 168,807
9,886,000 9,986,000 9,817,193 168.807

Total highways and streets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Expenditures (continued):
Current (continued):

Health:
Animal services
Bio disease management
Clean city section
Consumer protection
Environmental services
Program support

Total health

Human services:
Access to basic services
Develop affordable housing
Development process & policy
Plan and coordinate
Long-range planning
Offer health & social services
Partner with public education
Prevent and reduce youth gangs
Prevent neighborhood deterioration
Provide early childhood education
Provide emergency shelter
Provide mental health
Provide transitional housing
Substance abuse treatment/prevention
Supportive services to homeless
Train lower income persons
Well-being

Total human services

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, July 1
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CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
Year ended June 30, 2005
Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
5,283,000 5,783,000 5,497,447 285,553
364,000 364,000 317,279 46,721
1,004,000 1,004,000 955,322 48.678
1,380,000 1,380,000 1,242,076 137,924
357,000 720,000 686,776 33,224
8,388,000 9,251,000 8,698,900 552,100
118,000 118,000 99,236 18,764
75,000 75,000 73,995 1,005
6,179,000 6,179,000 5,975,796 203,204
2,123,000 2,123,000 2,084,091 38,909
1,258,000 1,351,700 1,169,846 181,854
2,499,000 2,500,000 2,243,286 256,714
5,249,000 5,248,000 4,492,098 755,902
1,223,000 1,223,000 1,165,188 §7,812
48,000 48,000 47,000 1,000
4,947,000 4,947,000 4,329,667 617,333
163,000 823,000 812,567 10,433
2,195,000 2,355,000 1,186,898 1,168,102
164,000 164,000 151,350 12,650
5,328,000 5,328,000 4,755,256 572,744
212,000 212,000 179,677 32,323
204,000 204,000 166,341 37,659
3,072,000 3,072,000 2,971,114 100,886
35,057,000 35,970,700 31,903,406 4,067,294
346,511,000 354,112,122 337,848,495 16,263,627
44,150,000 49,842,878 73,486,046 23,643,168
2,463,000 2,463,000 2,471,937 8,937
(55,292,000) (55,566,000) (55,320,250) (245,750)
(52,829,000) (53,103,000) (52,848,313) (236,813)
(8,679,000) (3,260,122) 20,637,733 23,406,355
64,786,282 64,786,282 64,786,282 -
S 56,107,282 $ 61.526,160 $ 85,424,015 S 23,406,355

Fund balance, June 30

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2005

Refuse
Airport Disposal
Fund Fund
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash, investments, and accrued interest s 9,514,262 s 5,646,374
Cash with fiscal agents held for debt service 13,608,086 4,383,284
Cash held by others - -
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for
uncollectible accounts 3,667,071 2,534,782
Due from other funds - -
Prepaid expenses - -
Due from other governments - -
Deposits - -
Inventories of supplies 618,149 743,650

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:

Cash, investments, and accrued interest 107,061,445 11,380,245
Account receivable from bond escrow agent 534,799 -
Accounts receivable - developers - -
Escrow deposits - -
Total restricted assets 107,596,244 11,380,245
Capital assets:
Land 33,057,300 5,165,504
Land and improvements acquired from U.S. Air Force 7,630,077 -
Buildings and improvements 146,757,016 39,795,558
Runways and other improvements 246,511,046 -
Improvements other than buildings 112,748,804 -
Machinery and equipment 12,771,515 63,303,752
Other 647,096 -
Total 560,122,854 108,264,814
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 308,399,709 53,477,318
Capital assets, net of depreciation 251,723,145 54,787,496
Construction work in progress 19,039,559 3,278,167
Total capital assets 270,762,704 58,065,663
Other:

Capitalized bond issuance costs 1,637,334 60,408
Land - acquired under claim settlement - -
Total other assets 1,637,334 60,408
Total noncurrent assets 379,996,282 69,506,316
Total Assets 407,403,850 82,814,406

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

13,308,090




Transit
Fund

S 3,761,343

7,316,33.

L

4,768,660

46,635,707

61,004,400

|

112,408,767
47,059,041

65,349,726
3,758,244

69,107,970

76,424,303
83,645,207

Other
Enterprise
Funds

$ 13,511,225
1,062,245
636,984

4,176,825
100,904

151,133,005
65,481,306

85,651,699
2,464,287

88,115,986

763,762

—_—

763,762

———————————

100,457,521

e e .

116,747,133

—_—

-48 -

Totals

§ 32,433,204
19,053,615
636,984

7,080,636

38,366
2,819,949

2,163,420
64,226,174

51,866,896
7,630,077
371,168,125
246,511,046
112,748,804
141,256,492
748,000
931,929,440
474,417,374
457,512,066
28,540,257

486,052,323

l

2,461,504

2,461,504
626,384,422
690,610,596

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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§  45972,434

2,904,546
2,202,405

702,141

l

|

702,141

1,730,000

—

1,730,000
2,432,141

—_—

53,265,833
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CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2008

Refuse
Airport Disposal
Fund Fund
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 270,424 541,112
Accrued payroll 202,229 340,753
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay 785,207 1,262,200
Accrued fuel cleanup costs - -
Fare tokens outstanding - -
Deposits 243,753 67,048
Due to other governments - -
Current portion of claims and judgments payable - -
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:

Construction contracts and miscellaneous payable 4,343,667 1,280,258

Deferred revenue 2,730,916 -

Current portion - revenue bonds payable 9,410,000 3,639,321

Accrued interest
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:

4,116,685

22,102,881

736,713
7,867,405

Accrued landfill closure costs - 1,515,176
Other —_— ~
Total - 1,515,176

Revenue bonds, net of current portion and

unamortized discounts, and capital leases 212,810,986 30,038,664
Other:

Claims and judgments payable - -

Accrued vacation and sick leave pay 314,426 803,450

Advances from other funds

Total 314,426 803,450
Total noncurrent liabilities: 213,125,412 32,357,290
Total liabilities 235,228,293 40,224,695
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 90,641,123 32,743,885
Restricted for:
Debt service 13,171,595 371,759
Construction 54,969,876 3,262,414
Unrestricted 13392963 6211653

Total net assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

$ 172,175,557

s 42589711



Transit
Fund

330,652
352,186
1,126,648

65,765

1,216,918

—————

3,092,169

e ——————
————————————
————————

281,661

281,661
281,661

3,373,830

69,107,970

8,727,810
2,435,597

$ 80,271,377

Other
Enterprise
Funds

1,214,148
112,909
386,985

212,566
78,839

260,255

893,136
443,208
3,602,046

228,953
228,953

30,407,839

112,547
22,200,000

22,312,547
52,949,339
56,551,385

44,649,707

1,198,077
1,265,183
13,082,781

$ 60,195,748

-50-

Totals

2,356,336
1,008,077
3,561,040
65,765
523,367
78,839

7,101,098
2,730,916
13,942,457
5,296,606

36,664,501

1,515,176
228,953

1,744,129
273,257,489

1,512,084
22,200,000

23,712,084

298,713,702
335,378,203

237,142,685

14,741,431
68,225,283
35,122,994

s 355232393

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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4,669,488
97,915
456,068
116,232

17,503,500

[
N
o4
[
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i

32,875,264
138,090

33,013,354
33,013,354
55,856,557

702,141

(3,292,865)

$ 2,590,724



CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS -

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year ended June 30, 2005

Operating revenues:
Charges for services

Operating expenses:
Salaries and fringe benefits
Professional services
Utilities
Supplies
Travel
Fuels, repairs and maintenance
Contractual services
Ciaims and judgments
Insurance premiums
Other operating expenses
Depreciation
Bad debt expense

Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Interest on investments
Federal housing grants
Housing assistance payments
Passenger facilities charges
Gain (loss) on disposition of property and equipment
Interest and other debt service expenses
Bond issue costs
Other

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before capital contributions and transfers
Capital contributions

Transfers in
Transfers out

Change in net assets

Net assets (deficit), July 1, as restated

Net assets (deficit), June 30

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Airport
Fund

S __ 55750313

12,522,111
297,007
2,495,700
627,887
66,557
1,975,706
4,084,314
2,081,720
21,897,459

|

46,048,521
9,710,792

814,502

7,929,741
(80,981)
(8,262,415)
(333,792)

357,543

424,598

10,135,390

5,817,552

—_
15952947

156222615

S 17175587

Refuse
Disposal
Fund

$__ 145,546,008

20,202,177
258,153
398,907

1,104,687

20,945
5,649,551
1,658,174

4,934,460
6,032,365

107,341

10,366,760
5,179,248

225,529

(1,186,759)
(1,003,342)
122

5,707

(1,958,743)
3,220,505

1,252,055

1,968,450

40,621,261

S __ 42,589,711
—l



Transit
Fund

s 3,461,802

20,042,703
13,752
537,917
581,007
16,091
3,825,077
4,862,454

3,453,841
4,621,291

4,400

37,958,533

(34,496,731)

189,304

1,783,215
1,972,519

(32,524,212)

23,710,984
25,331,537

(215,184)

16,303,125

63,968,252

$ 80,271,377

Other
Enterprise
Funds

s 13,770,287

6,765,187
83,356
2,500,188
151,290
3,552
2,418,723
466,568

3,035,182
4,845,546

306,399

20,575,991

(6,805,704)

468,206
24,750,772
(19,363,574)

(1,823,562)

(115,744)
482,885
4,398,983

(2,406,721)

363,445
2,300,000

(230,698)

26,026

60,169,722

$ 60,195,748

-52.

Totals

$ 118,537,410

59,532,238
652,268
5,932,712
2,464,871
107,145
13,869,057
11,071,510

13,505,203
37,396,661
418,140

144,949,805

(26,412,395)

1,697,541
24,750,772
(19,363,574)
7,929,741
(1,267,740)
(11,089,319)

(449,414)
2,629,350

4,837,357
(21,575,038)

29,891,981
27,631,537

(1,697,937)

34,250,543

320,981,850

s 355232393

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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S __ 83,804,939

6,060,866
770,801
125,679

1,212,598

5,928
4,397,110
1,954,702

23,682,795
39,512,277

2,094,785

110,490

————————

79,928,031
3,876,908

1,020,796

(5,533)

98,597
1,113,860

4,990,768

(269,000)

4,721,768

(7.312,492)
$ (2,590,724)



CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year ended June 30, 2005
Airport
Fund
Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from customers $ 57557180
Cash received from other funds for goods and services -
Cash payments to employees for services (11,713,385)
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (10,246,037)
Cash payments to other funds for goods and services (3,221,818)
Cash payments to claimants and beneficiaries -
Miscellaneous cash received 357,543

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Cash flow from Roncapital financing activities;
Operating grants received
Housing assistance payments
Principal paid on advance from other funds
Interest paid on advance from other funds
Transfers-in from other funds
Transfers-out to other funds

Net cash provided by (used for)
noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Proceeds from notes payable

Principal paid on revenue bond maturities and refunded bonds

Return of deposit

Interest and other expenses paid

on revenue bond maturities

Acquisition and construction of capital assets

Cash payments to other funds for goods and services

Capital grants received

Receipts in anticipation of future land sale

Passenger facilities charges

Proceeds from sale (retirement) of property and equipmen
Net cash used for capital and

related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received on investments

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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32,733,483

——————
—————————

(7,630,000)

(9,425,315)
(14,719,187)
(208,987)

7,929,741
7,733

(24,046,015)

4,695,400

4,695,400
13,382,868

116,800,925
$_ 130,183,793
——

Refuse
Dispaosal
Fund

$ 44,836,450
803,640
(18,868,237)
(9,929,045)
(6,053,765)

5,707
10,794,750

(1252059
(1252059

5,800,000
(2,975,000)

(856,942)
(14,498,300)
(101,586)

3,611,000

(9.020,828)

225,529
225,529

747,396

20662507
S 21409903



Transit
Fund

s 3,335,445

(18,693,870)
(9,572,968)
(5,431,755)

986,713

(29.376,435)

1,084,242

25,331,537

(215,184)

26,200,595

(23,969,493)

26,354,555

57

2,385,119

189,304
189,304

(601,417)

11,679,093
$ __ 11,077,676

Other
Enterprise
Funds

$ 13,055,085
287,718
(6,969,770)
(5,760,642)
(2,173,550)

290,001

(1,271,188)

23,177,115
(19,363,575)
(1,300,000)
(647,250)

2,300,000

(230,698)

3,935,592

(789,920)
339,188

(1,186,780)
(2,264,975)

1,619,861

(2,282,626)
468,206
468,206

849,984

22,311,592
S 23,161,576

-54.

Totals

S 118,784,130

1,091,358
(56,245,262)
(35,508,692)
(16,880,888)

1,639,964
12,880,610

24,261,357
(19,363,575)
(1,300,000)
(647,250)
27,631,537

(1,.697,937)

28,884,132

5,800,000
(11,394,920)
339,188

(11,469,037)
(55,451,955)

(310,573)
27,974,416

7,929,741
3,618,790

(32,964,350)

5,578,439
5578439
14,378,831
171,454,117

$ 185.832;948

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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S 22,080,810
63,564,802
(6,129,878)

(51,776,692)

(2,014,420)

(20,882,279)
83,053

4,925,396

(269,000)
(269,000

(117,495)

25,000

26,417

(66,078)

1,020,796
1,020,796

5,611,114

40,361,320
S __ 45972434



CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year ended June 30, 2005

Airport
Fund

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used for) operating activities:

Operating income (loss) s 9,710,792
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used for ) operating activities:

Depreciation 21,897,459
Amortization -
Miscellaneous cash received 357,543

Provision for claims and judgments -
Decrease (increase) in assets:

Receivables (915,132)
Escrow deposits -
Due from other governments -
Due from other funds 81,869
Inventories of su pplies (618,149)

Prepaid expenses -
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable (93,949)
Customer deposits 97,450
Accrued landfill closure costs and fuels cleanup -

Accrued employee compensation and benefits (399,949)

Fare tokens outstanding and deposits -
Due to other funds -
Escrow liability

Deferred revenue 2,615,549
Due to other governments -
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $ 32,733,483

Cash and cash equivalents at June 30 consist of:

Current assets:
Cash, investments, and accrued interest ] 9,514,262
Cash with fiscal agents 13,608,086

Cash held by others -
Restricted assets;

Cash, investments, and accrued interest 107,061,445
Escrow deposits -
Total cash and cash equivalents, June 30 S 130.183,793

Non cash transactions:
Unrealized gains (losses) on investments £ (74,180)
Transfer of capital assets from the Capital Projects Fund -
HUD payment of third party guaranteed debt -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
i -55-

Refuse
Disposal

— Fund

s 5,179,248

6,032,365

5,707

194,009

(45,318)

(208,849)

103,160
(472,985)
7,413

$__ 10754750

s 5,646,374
4,383,284
11,380,245

$__ 21,409,903
——

] (4,808)
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Transit
Fund

§  (34,496,731)

4,621,291

986,713

(121,873)

(40,158)

129,115

(450,308)
(4,484)

$ (29,376.435)

§ 3,761,343

7,316,333

S 11,077,676

5 8,280
68,581

Other
Enterprise
Funds

$ (6,805,704)

4,845,546
20,130
528,999

(16,514)
(264,568)

88,226
(38,366)

678,942

(119,488)
30,680
(81,869)

(137,202)

3 (1,271,188)

$ 13,511,225
1,062,245
636,984

7,324,984
626,138

$ 23,161,576

s 745
250,525
1,516,359
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]

S

L)

S

Totals

(26,412,395)

37,396,661
20,130
1,878,962

(859,510)
(264,568)

81,869
(615,399)
(38,366)

505,259
97,450
103,160
(1,442,730)
33,609
(81,869)
(137,202)

2,615,549

12,880,610

32,433,204
19,053,615
636,984

133,083,007
626,138

185,832,948

(69,963)
319,106
1,516,359

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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3,876,908

110,490

83,053
2,800,516

50,793

(89,685)

(2,303,484)

(228,440)
40,232

693,878

(108,865)

4,925,396

45,972,434

45,972,434
—

(35,811)



Exhibit A-9

Page 1 of 1
CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2005
Agency
Fund
ASSETS
Assets:
Cash, investments, and accrued interest $ 13,460,158
Receivables 237,069
Total Assets 13,697,227
LIABILITIES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 349,254
Funds held for others 13,347,973
Total Liabilities 13,697,227
Net Assets S =

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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NOTE 1

NOTE 2

CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2005

THE FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

The City of Albuquerque, New Mexico (City), was founded in 1706, chartered as a town in 1885, and organized under
territorial law as a city in 1891, The City became a charter city in 1917, and the voters approved a home rule amendment to
the charter in 1971, In 1974, the electorate voted to establish a mayor-council form of government; the City Council
consists of nine council members elected from districts. As a governmental entity, the City is not subject to Federal or State
income taxes.

The City provides traditional services such as public safety, culture and recreation, public works, highways and streets,
water and sewer services, and refuse collection. In addition, the City operates parking facilities, a transit system, an
international airport, corrections and detention facilities, and a housing authority.

The City of Albuquerque (the primary government) for financial reporting purposes consists of funds, departments, and
programs for which the City is financially accountable. Criteria indicating financial accountability include, but are not
limited to, the following:

1. (a) appointment by the City of a majority of voting members of the governing body of an organization, and

(b) ability of the City to impose its will on the daily operations of an organization such as the power to remove
appointed members at will; to modify or approve budgets, rates or fees, or to make other substantive decisions; or

2. provision by the organization of specific financial benefits or burdens to the City; or

3. fiscal dependency by the organization on the City such as from the lack of authority to determine its budget or issue
its own bonded debt without City approval.

Based on the foregoing criteria, the City has determined that Albuquerque Bernalillo County Water Utility Authority
(Authority), created with an effective date of July 1, 2003, is a component unit of the City. The Autherity’s governing board
is composed of three members of the City Council, three members of the County of Bernalillo Commission and the Mayor
of the City. See Note 23.

The City has determined that it does have relationships with other organizations that are considered to be component units
of the City. However, those organizations, not included herein, are of such nature and significance that exclusion would not
render the City's financial statements incomplete or misleading.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the City of Albuquerque have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The more significant of the
government's accounting policies are described below.

A. Basis of Presentation

The financial transactions of the City are recorded in individual funds, each of which is considered a separate
accounting entity. All financial transactions are reported in basic financial statements, as follows:

1. Government-wide Financial Statements:
o cmment-wide Financial Statements:

The statement of net assets and the Statement of activities display information about the primary government and its
component unit. These statements include the financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary
activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities. These statements
distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the City. Governmental activities generally are
financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are
financed in whole orin part by fees charged to external parties.

The net assets of the City are reported in three categories: 1) invested in capital assets, net of related debt; 2) restricted;
and 3) unrestricted. Restricted net assets result from constraints placed on the use of net assets when externally imposed
by creditors, grantors, laws and regulations of other governments and imposed by law through constitutional provisions
or enabling legislation. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to
use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as needed.
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NOTE 2

CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2005

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued

. Basis of Presentation, continued

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the different
business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those
that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular
function. Amounts reported as program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment; and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.
Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported as general revenues. Indirect
expense allocations that have been made in the funds are shown in a separate column and are not included in the

2. Fund Financial Statements:

The fund financial statements provide information about the City's funds, including its fiduciary funds. Separate
statements for each fund category; governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary, are presented. The emphasis of fund
financial statements is on major governmental and business-type (enterprise) funds, each displayed in a separate
column. All remaining governmental and business-type (enterprise) funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor
funds.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating revenues and expenses. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the fund's principal ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions in which
each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Operating expenses include the cost of services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues or expenses. These include operating subsidies, investment earnings, interest expense, and
transactions that result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund, This fund is the City's primary operating fund and is used to account for the general operations of
the City and for all financial resources except those that are required to be accounted for in another fund.

General Obligations Bond Debt Service Fund. This fund accounts for the monies set aside for the payment of
principal and interest of all general obligation bonds. The principal source of revenue is from property taxes.

Capital Acquisition Fund. This fund accounts for capital projects for which financing is provided by the sale of
general obligation and revenue bonds, miscellaneous revenues and various grants.

The City reports the following major proprietary (enterprise) funds:
Airport Fund. This fund accounts for the operations of the Albuquerque International Sunport.

Refuse Disposal Fund. This fund accounts for the general operations of providing refuse removal services.

Transit Fund. This fund accounts for the operations of the City’s Sun Tran bus system.
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CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2005

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued

A. Basis of Presentation, continued

The City reports the following fund types:

Special Revenue Funds, To account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legaily restricted to
expenditures for specific purposes.

Debt Service Funds. To account for the accumaulation of resources for, and the payment of, general and special
assessment long-term principal, interest, and related costs.

Capital Projects Funds. To account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major
capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds.

Enterprise Funds. These funds account for resources generally through services for which the City charges
customers — either outside, or internal units or departments of the City. These funds report on the full accrual basis
of accounting.

Permanent Funds. These funds account for resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only earnings, not
principal, may be used for purposes that support specific programs.

Internal Service Funds. These funds account for inventory warehousing and issues; worker's compensation, tort and
other claims insurance coverage; vehicle maintenance and motor pool services; and communication services to City
"departments. In addition, these funds provide health insurance coverage to City employees.

Agency Funds. These funds account for monies held by the City in a custodial capacity on behalf of third parties or
other agencies.

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accountin
=0 T ocus, basis of Accounting

1. Government—Wide, Proprietary and Agency Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide, proprietary, and agency fund financial Statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in
which the City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include gross
receipts and property taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes, net
of estimated refunds and uncollectible amounts, is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue
from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements are met.

All governmental and business-type activities of the City follow FASB Statements and interpretations issued on or
before November 30, 1989, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins, unless those
pronouncements conflict with GASB pronouncements. The City has elected not to follow FASB Statements and
interpretations issued after November 30, 1989,

2. Governmental Fund Financial Statements
=210 fund Financial Statements

Property taxes, gross receipts taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest are considered susceptible to accrual. All
other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when the City receives cash.

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for a) principal and interest payments on
general long-term debt which are recorded when amounts have been accumulated in the debt service funds for the
current debt service payments on July 1 in the following year and b) vacation and sick leave pay, which are recognized
as expenditures only when payment is due. Genersal capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt are reported as other financing sources.
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued

C. Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all pooled cash and investments (including restricted assets) of the City are
considered to be cash equivalents although there are investments with a maturity in excess of three months when
purchased because they have the characteristics of demand deposits for each individual fund. Non-pooled investments
with original maturities of three months or more are deducted from cash, investments, and accrued interest and changes
therein are reported as cash flows from investing activities.

. Estimated Amounts Reported in Financia] Statements

. Cash, Investments, and Accrued Interest

A significant portion of the cash and investments of funds of the City is pooled for investment purposes. The pooled
cash investment program of the City is operated under the provisions of City ordinance and a specific City investment
policy. The policy states that the City shall invest cash balances over the anticipated amount needed to meet operating
requirements. Investments are recorded at fair value. The balance reported for each participating fund as "Cash,
Investments, and Accrued Interest" represents the equity of that fund in the pooled cash, investments, and accrued
interest. Interest earnings on pooled investments are allocated to the participating funds based on average daily
balances.

The investment policy states that the City will not commit any funds invested in the pool to maturities longer than three
years from the date of purchase, except investments held to meet legal reserve requirements on bond indebtedness. The
maturity date of these investments will not exceed the final maturity date of the bond issue to which they are pledged.
Funds are invested on the basis of a minimum of three bids and/or offers. Certificates of deposit are based on
competitive rates for specified maturities.

All investments are valued at quoted market prices except for the investment in Special Assessments District bonds and
in State of New Mexico Mortgage Finance Authority bonds that are computed at amortized cost approximating market
value.

The investment in the State of New Mexico local government investment pool is valued at $1.00 per share. It is a pool
that is not registered with the United States Securities Exchange Commission and the regulatory oversight for that pool

in and made a part of the State Treasurer’s Investment Policy document. The Independent Auditors’ Report, together
with the Financial Statements, the accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements, and the Independent Auditors’
Report on Compliance and Internal Controks are available from the State Investment Council, 2055 South Pacheco
Street, Suite 100, Santa Fe, New Mexico 87505, upon written request.

The following categories of investments are specifically authorized by the policy:

Repurchase Agreements - secured by collateral, which is delivered to a third-party safekeeping institution, with a
market value equal to or greater than the value of the agreement.

U.S. Treasury Obligations - bills, notes, and bon